I. 	 ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR 

Petitioner MarkWest Liberty Midstream & Resources, L.L.C. ("Mark West") appeals the 

decision of the Circuit Court ofDoddridge County on three grounds: 

A. 	 The Circuit Court erred by failing to apply the proper standard for issuance of a 
preliminary injunction as recognized by the West Virginia Supreme Court of 
Appeals. 

B. 	 The Circuit Court erred in issuing a preliminary injunction without considering any 
evidence. 

C. 	 The Circuit Court erred in granting a preliminary injunction which may requires 
MarkWest to choose between compliance with the Court's Order and compliance 
with legal obligations imposed by a third-party governmental agency. 

II. 	 STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

Petitioner, MarkWest is engaged in the gathering, processing, and transportation ofnatural 

gas and natural gas liquids in the State of West Virginia. Respondent, the Tobey Lynn Nutt 

Declaration of Trust (the "Trust") owns a 319.56-acre tract ofland located in Doddridge County, 

West Virginia (the "Property"), which is used by the Trustee, James T. Nutt, for hunting and 

recreational purposes. Through various right-of-way agreements and easements entered into 

between the parties in 2011 and 2014 (collectively, the "Agreements"), in exchange for significant 

sums of money, the Trust granted MarkWest rights-of-way and easements across the Property for: 

(1) installation of multiple oil and gas pipelines, (2) installation of an electrical line, and (3) two 

temporary access roads. See generally, Verified Complaint (APP 000008-14). Specifically, on 

December 29,2011, for a large lump sum payment, the Trust granted MarkWest a 100-foot right

of-way and easement for a natural gas pipeline. Also, on December 29, 2011, in exchange for 

another sizable payment, the Trust granted MarkWest a right-of-way for two temporary access 

roads to construct and maintain its pipeline. In 2012, as permitted under the Agreements, 
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MarkWest constructed an initial pipeline within the right-of-way and, thereafter, completed 

restoration of the Property. 

Subsequently, on February 25, 2014, the Trust granted to MarkWest a 100-foot right-of

way to construct, operate, repair, maintain, remove, and rebuild an electrical system across a 

separate section of the Property. On July 22, 2014, the Trust agreed to allow MarkWest to add 

two (2) additional pipelines in its existing pipeline right-of-way. Each of these new right-of-way 

Agreements included specific reclamation requirements as requested by Mr. Nutt, including the 

planting of Imperial Whitetail Clover in some areas and certain improvements to the two access 

roads. MarkWest agreed to deviate from its standard reclan1ation arrangement to accommodate 

Mr. Nutt's requests. 

As permitted under the Agreements, a portion of the 100-foot pipeline right-of-way was 

disturbed to construct a second pipeline. Construction of that second pipeline was completed in 

late 2014. In spring and summer of2015, MarkWest restored the portion ofthe pipeline right-of

way that was disturbed during construction of the second pipeline in accordance with the 

Agreements. 

Construction of the power line in the electrical right-of-way was completed in late 2015. 

In 2016, MarkWest restored the electrical right-of-way in accordance with the Agreements. In 

order to maintain a safe condition on the right of way and to accommodate requests made by Mr. 

Nutt with respect to reclamation, MarkWest continued to conduct reclamation activities on the 

property in 2016. MarkWest also improved the two access roads in accordance with the 

Agreements. Since completing construction activities on the property, Mark West has, per the 

terms of the parties' Agreements, enjoyed a continued right of access to its rights-of-way for 

2 




purposes of inspection, monitoring, maintenance, and repair. The rights-of-way and access roads 

now sit, reclaimed, as nature takes its course on the Property. 

On October 28,2016, the Trust filed this action against MarkWest seeking the injunctive 

relief that forms the basis ofthe instant appeal, along with three counts ofbreach ofcontract. (APP 

000005-24). Specifically, the Trust claims that MarkWest breached the Agreements by failing to 

perform to the Trustee's satisfaction specific reclamation requirements on two (2) 100-foot wide 

strips of land running through the 319.56-acre tract of land owned by the Trust. (APP 000005

24). In its Verified Complaint, the Trust sought money damages for the alleged breach of the 

Agreements1 and a preliminary and/or permanent injunction requiring MarkWest to "cease any 

activities, which will cause damage to or alter the [Trust's] property; including but not limited to, 

digging, excavating, paving, etc., on [the Trust's] property." (APP 000022). 

On December 8,2016, MarkWest filed a Response to the Motion for a Preliminary and/or 

Permanent Injunction arguing that the Trust could not establish the elements required for the 

issuance ofapreliminary injunction under well-established West Virginia law. (APP 000026-36). 

MarkWest argued that: (i) the Trust could not establish that irreparable harm was reasonably likely 

to occur without the issuance of an injunction; (ii) the Trust had other adequate legal remedies 

available to it; and (iii) the balancing of hardships test that courts must use when considering 

whether to grant an injunction - an extraordinary, disfavored remedy - weighed heavily against 

the issuance of a preliminary injunction. (APP 000026-36). On December 12, 2016, MarkWest 

filed an Answer to the Trust's Verified Complaint denying the substantive allegations relating to 

the alleged breaches of the parties' Agreements. (APP 000037-52). 

1 The Trust's breach of contract claims remain pending in the Circuit Court of Doddridge County, West Virginia. 
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The Circuit Court held a hearing on the Trust's Motion for Preliminary Injunction on 

December 13, 2016. (APP 000089-123). Critically, during the hearing, the Trust conceded that it 

was unable to show that irreparable hann was reasonably likely to occur without the issuance of 

an injunction - the first element required for issuance ofa preliminary injunction: 

At this point I have agreed with counsel to drop the aspect 
of irreparable harm. They kind of beat up on me. I don't 
think I could prove it here today in light of Mr. Nutt not 
being here. 

(APP 000091). The Trust did not have a witness present at the hearing. Indeed, the Trust presented 

no evidence whatsoever in support of its request for an injunction. In contrast, MarkWest offered 

multiple times to call its witness, Dustin Vincent, Project Manager, who was in attendance to 

provide testimony bearing directly on the merits of the Trust's claims. (APP 000089-123). 

However, the hearing concluded without consideration of any evidence as the Circuit Court 

declined to hear Mr. Vincent's testimony. 

On January 12,2017, the Circuit Court entered an Order granting a preliminary injunction 

against MarkWest. (APP 000001-4). Although unclear in its scope, the Order purports to grant 

the Trust's request to "preclude Defendant MarkWest from any further attempts to comply with 

the contractual duties." Id The Order altered the status quo by enjoining MarkWest from 

exercising its rights and obligations under the Agreements, including undertaking any further 

reclamation efforts with respect to Trust's Property. The injunction was not only legally improper, 

but also substantially interferes with MarkWest's specific rights under the various Agreements to 

access, maintain, and/or repair its live pipelines and electrical lines. In this regard, the relief sought 

by the Trust and granted by the Circuit Court is inherently contradictory, since the Trust also seeks 

money damages for MarkWest's alleged failure to reclaim its property in accordance with the 
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Agreements. Running afoul of the applicable standard for injunctive relief, the Order must be 

reversed. 

III. SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT 

The Circuit Court erred as a matter of law in granting a preliminary injunction enjoining 

MarkWest's activities and substantially limiting its property rights without consideration or 

application of the standard for issuance ofa preliminary injunction under West Virginia law. This 

Court has uniformly held that in order to obtain a preliminary injunction, a party must demonstrate 

by a clear showing: (1) a reasonable likelihood ofthe presence ofirreparable harm; (2) the absence 

of any other appropriate remedy at law; and (3) that the balancing of hardships test weighs in the 

plaintiffs favor. Jefferson County Bd. ofEduc. v. Jefferson County Educ. Ass 'n, 183 W.Va. 15, 

24, 393 S.E.2d 653, 662 (1990); see also, McGraw v. Imperial Marketing, 472 S.E.2d 792, 196 

W.Va. 346, fn. 8, (1996), certiorari denied, 117 S.Ct. 391, 519 U.S. 966, 136 L.Ed.2d 307. In 

turn, the balancing of hardships analysis requires courts to weigh the following factors: (a) the 

likelihood of irreparable harm to plaintiff without an injunction; (b) the likelihood of harm to the 

defendant with an injunction; (c) the plaintiffs likelihood of success on the merits; and (d) the 

public interest. 

Yet, the only legal authority relied upon by the Circuit Court in granting the preliminary 

injunction was a 1906 case, Powhatan Coal and Coke Co. v. Ritz, 60 W.Va. 395,56 SE 257,260 

(1906), which explains the function of a preliminary injunction, rather than the standard to be 

considered in issuing a preliminary injunction. Had the Circuit Court considered any of the 

required elements for issuance of a preliminary injunction, no injunction could have issued. The 

Circuit Court simply did not apply any cognizable standard and failed to require the Trust to meet 
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its burden of proof supporting the issuance of injunctive relief. For these reasons, MarkWest 

requests that this Court reverse the Circuit Court's order granting a preliminary injunction. 

IV. STATEMENT REGARDING ORAL ARGUMENT 

This case is appropriate for oral argument under Rule 19(a) because it involves: (1) 

assignments of error in the application of settled law, the legal standard for issuance of a 

preliminary injunction; (2) an unsustainable exercise of discretion where the law governing that 

discretion is settled; and (3) insufficient evidence to meet the legal standard for issuance of a 

preliminary injunction. 

V. ARGUMENT 

A. Statement of Jurisdiction and Standard of Review. 

This is an appeal of an order granting a preliminary injunction. (APP 000001-4). This 

Court has discretionary appellate jurisdiction to review interlocutory lower court orders in cases 

in equity relating to preliminary or temporary injunctive relief. State ex reI. McGraw v. Telecheck 

Services, Inc., 213 W.Va. 438,445,582 S.E.2d 885,892 (2003) (internal citations omitted). 

In reviewing a circuit court's decision to issue a preliminary injunction, this Court has 

articulated a three-pronged standard of review: (1) the fmal order granting the temporary 

injunction and the ultimate disposition is reviewed under an abuse of discretion standard, (2) the 

Circuit Court's underlying factual findings are reviewed under a clearly erroneous standard; and 

(3) all questions oflaw shall be reviewed de novo. See Syl. Pt. 1, State By and Through McGraw 

v. Imperial Marketing, 196 W.Va. 346,472 S.E.2d 792 (1996) (citations omitted). Here, despite 

the Circuit Court's broad discretion to weigh the facts and circumstances presented, its failure to 

apply the appropriate legal standard for injunctive relief cannot withstand judicial scrutiny. 
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B. Awarding Injunctive Relief Without Irreparable Harm: The Circuit Court erred by 
failing to apply the proper standard for issuance of a preliminary injunction as recognized 
by the West Virginia Supreme Court of Appeals. 

As noted, this Court consistently has held that to obtain a preliminary injunction, a party 

must demonstrate: (1) a reasonable likelihood of irreparable harm; (2) the absence of any other 

appropriate remedy at law; and (3) that the balancing of hardships test swings in the plaintiff's 

favor. Jefferson County Bd. ofEduc. v. Jefferson County Educ. Ass 'n, 183 W.Va. 15, 24, 393 

S.E.2d 653,662; see also, McGraw v. Imperial Marketing, 472 S.E.2d 792, 196 W.Va. 346, fu. 8. 

MarkWest advocated for the application of this standard before the Circuit Court, yet the 

lower court appeared disinterested in this established standard, instead confining its legal analysis 

to a 1906 case that explains the function of a preliminary injunction (to preserve the status quo), 

rather than the elements that must be demonstrated for issuance of a preliminary injunction: 

This Court finds that Plaintiffs argument is persuasive. As the West 
Virginia Supreme Court of Appeals has stated, "the fimction of a 
preliminary injlmction, whether it be prohibitory or mandatory, is to 
preserve the status quo until, upon final hearing, the court may grant full 
relief." Powhatan Coal and Coke Co. v. Ritz, 60 W.Va. 395, 56 SE 257, 
260 (1906). 

(APP 000003).2 

Although this passage may describe an underlying purpose of injunctive relief, the Order 

is devoid of any analysis (or mention) of the proper standard for the issuance of an injunction or 

the factors that courts must consider in deciding whether to award such equitable relief. Had the 

The injunction issued by the Circuit Court arguably alters the status quo, rather than preserving it. The 
injunction alters MarkWest's rights and obligations under applicable contractual and regulatory provisions. 
In exchange for substantial payments and the promise to reclaim the Property in accordance with the 
Agreements, the Trust granted certain property rights to MarkWest. (APP 000057-58, fn. 2-4). MarkWest 
has enjoyed these property rights since they were granted in 2011 and 2014, respectively. The injunction 
issued by the Circuit Court modifies and limits the rights that Mark West bargained-and-paid for and that 
the Trust granted to it by Agreement. Restricting the rights granted to MarkWest is a taking that seriously 
upsets the status quo, rather than preserves it. 
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Circuit Court considered any of the required elements, no injunction could have issued. First, the 

Trust conceded on the record during the hearing that he could not demonstrate a reasonable 

likelihood of the presence of irreparable harm. (APP 000091). This Court has "uniformly held 

that in order to obtain a preliminary injunction, a party must demonstrate the presence of 

irreparable harm." Jefferson County Bd ofEducation v. Jefferson County Educ. Ass'n, 183 W.Va. 

15,24 (1990), citing Syl. Pt. 4, in part, R.R. Kitchen & Co. v. Local Union No. 141, Int'l Bhd of 

Elec. Workers, 91 W.Va. 65, 112 S.E. 198 (1922) ("[I]fthe injury is irreparable within the legal 

sense of the term, as it generally is, it affords ground for a preliminary injunction."); Hart v. 

National Collegiate Athletic Ass 'n, 209 W.Va. 543, 549-550, 550 S.E.2d 79, 85-86 (2001) 

("Generally, injunctive relief is available to litigants who will sustain an irreparable injury if 

emergency action is not taken in their particular case."). Indeed, even the Powhatan case relied 

upon by the Circuit Court recognizes that irreparable harm is necessary for the issuance of a 

preliminary injunction. Powhatan Coal and Coke Co. v. Ritz, 60 W.Va. 395, 56 SE 257. Simply 

put, this remarkable concession should have ended the lower court's analysis. The Circuit Court's 

decision to issue injunctive relief in the face of such a concession, alone, warrants reversal. 

In addition, the Trust failed to identify any reason why its remedy at law - its underlying 

claims for breach of contract and the potential damages associated therewith - are incomplete or 

inadequate. "Injunctive relief, like other equitable or extraordinary relief, is inappropriate when 

there is an adequate remedy at law." Hechler v. Casey, 175 W.Va. 434, 440, 333 S.E.2d 799,805 

(1985). See also Severt v. Beckley Coals, Inc., 153 W.Va. 600, 170 S.E.2d 577 (1969); State ex 

reI. Battle v. Hereford, 148 W.Va. 97, 133 S.E.2d 86 (1963); Backus v. Abbot, 136 W.Va. 891,69 

S.E.2d 48 (1952). Where the remedy at law is plain, complete, and adequate, a court of equity is 
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without jurisdiction to grant injunctive relief. Severt v. Beckley Coals, Inc., 153 W.Va. 600; State 

ex rei. Battle v. Hereford, 148 W.Va. 97; Backus v. Abbot, 136 W.Va. 891, 69 S.E.2d 48. 

In Severt, this Court upheld a lower court's denial of injunctive relief because the plaintiff s 

recovery of damages in his private nuisance suit provided a complete and adequate remedy at 

law. Severt, 153 W.Va. at 606.3 Similarly, in State ex reI. Battle v. Hereford, 148 W.Va. 97 

(1963), this Court held that the circuit court was without equitable jurisdiction to issue injunctive 

relief where a state statute provided a full and complete legal remedy to the plaintiff. Id. at 108. 

Simply put, where there is an adequate remedy at law, courts have no jurisdiction to issue a 

preliminary injunction. 

Similarly, the Trust has a full and adequate remedy at law for MarkWest's alleged failure 

to comply with the reclamation requirements of the Agreements - claims for breach of contract, 

which it has filed and which remain pending in Circuit Court. (See APP 000005-24). lfthe Trust 

can successfully prove its claims, it will be awarded damages. The Trust failed to offer (and the 

Circuit Court failed to identify) any reason why legal damages, if awarded, would be incomplete 

or inadequate. Because the absence ofa remedy at law is required for the issuance ofa preliminary 

injunction, the Circuit Court erred as a matter of law in granting a preliminary injunction in this 

case. 

C. 	 Concession Aside, the Trust Offers Nothing: The Circuit Court erred in 
issuing a preliminary injunction without considering any evidence. 

When presented with requests for injunctive relief, West Virginia courts must assess "the 

comparative hardship or convenience to the respective parties involved[.]" Syl. Pt. 2, Severt v. 

3 This Court subsequently declined to apply Severt in a nuisance case, Burch v. Nedpower Mount Storm, LLC, 220 
W.Va. 443 (2007), fmding the reasoning in Severt inconsistent with a line of nuisance cases that hold that continual 
substantial interferences with a person's use and enjoyment of property by things such as noise and unsightliness can 
best be abated by courts applying equitable principles. However, the Court did not reject the general principles set 
forth in Severt outside the nuisance context. 
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Beckley Coals, Inc., 153 W.Va. 600. To perform this balancing test, courts weigh the following 

factors: : (1) the likelihood of irreparable harm to plaintiff without injunction; (2) the likelihood 

of harm to the defendant with an injunction; (3) the plaintiffs likelihood of success on the merits; 

and (4) the public interest. It was the Trust's burden to demonstrate by a clear showing that these 

factors weigh in its favor. Jefferson County Bd. ofEduc., 183 W.Va. at 24. 

Although the Trust has the burden of demonstrating that the balancing ofhardships weighs 

in its favor, it presented no testimony or other evidence that could have allowed the Court to 

evaluate the balancing of hardships factors. Indeed, during the December 13,2016 hearing on the 

Trust's Motion for Preliminary Injunction, the Trust presented no testimony or other evidence 

that could have allowed the Court to assess these four factors. No witnesses were present at the 

hearing to offer testimony in support of its request for injunctive relief. (APP 000090-91). No 

affidavits were offered. (See APP 000089-123). The Trust simply relied upon the allegations as 

set forth in its Verified Complaint, which counsel conceded were, at least in part, untrue4, and 

which MarkWest specifically denied in its Answer. 

By ignoring the Trust's evidentiary burden of proof and issuing injunctive relief based 

solely upon the disputed allegations contained in the Verified Complaint, the Circuit Court 

disregarded the applicable legal standard and rendered the corresponding hearing an exercise in 

futility. See State ex re!. Bronaugh v. City ofParkersburg, 148 W.Va. 568,574, 136 S.E.2d 783, 

787 (1964) (observing that granting injunctive relief based solely upon a cursory affidavit would 

render injunctive relief "mandatory in nature and a harsh remedial process ... "). 

4 The Verified Complaint alleges that "Markwest's reclamation attempts are substandard and in fact in many instances 
cause additional irreparable harm," and that "[i]njunctive relief is necessary to prevent infringement upon and 
irreparable damage to Plaintiffs' property." (Verified Complaint, ~~ 47, 56). Despite these allegations, the Trust 
conc~ded during the December 13,2016 hearing that it could not show irreparable harm. 
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Had it actually performed the balancing test, the circuit court would have denied the Trust's 

motion. Of course, the first factor weighs against relief, since the Trust admitted that it could not 

show irreparable harm. (APP 000091). Conversely, MarkWest faces substantial risk of harm by 

the injunction. Contractual rights, privileges, and obligations have been restricted, and MarkWest 

may be prevented from adequately protecting the substantial investment it has made in the 

Property. 

The Court could not have considered the third factor of the balancing of hardships test, the 

plaintiff's likelihood of success on the merits, and reached a conclusion in the Trust's favor, 

without hearing any competent evidence from the Trust and after declining to hear evidence from 

MarkWest. Here, the only arguable "evidence" offered by the Trust was its Verified Complaint. 

However, the Complaint is nothing more than a cursory affidavit, which this Court has plainly held 

is insufficient to support the issuance of an injunction. Jefferson County Bd. of Education v. 

Jefferson County Educ. Ass'n, 183 W.Va. 15,23-24. 

Finally, the Order is devoid of any consideration to the fourth factor - the public interest. 

As MarkWest argued, the public interest is aligned with a decision denying the injunction as the 

public's interest in upholding the terms of contracts, like the right-of-way Agreements between 

the Plaintiff and MarkWest - a fundamental aspect of our system of law - is negatively impacted 

by the injunction entered in this case. (APP 000034, APP 000066). Furthermore, the injunction 

limits MarkWest's rights with respect to the Property and could limit its ability to service and 

maintain its pipelines, which could negatively impact the public as end users and due to safety 

concerns. Importantly, the Trust offered no argument relating to how the public interest might be 

aligned with its interest. 
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Issuing the injunction under these circumstances - without an evidentiary hearing, without 

an assessment of the requisite elements for injunctive relief, and without an appropriate balancing 

of the corresponding hardships - the Court committed reversible error. 

D. 	 The Circuit Court erred in granting a preliminary injunction which may 
requires MarkWest to choose between compliance with the Court's Order and 
compliance with legal obligations imposed by a third-party governmental 
agency. 

As permitted by agreement with the Trust, MarkWest previously constructed and now 

maintains two active natural gas pipelines, a power line, and two access roads on the Trust's 

Property. Due to the nature of MarkWest's business, it is required to comply with certain legal 

obligations imposed by third-party governmental agencies. These obligations are ongoing. 

The Circuit Court's January 12, 2016 Order Granting Preliminary Injunction, states, in 

pertinent part, as follows: 

... the defendant may lawfully exercise any rights granted and fulfill any 
legal obligations imposed by ... any third party government agency within 
its legitimate exercise of power so long as the same is not contrary to the 
injunction granted hereby. 

(APP 000004). (emphasis added). 

Based upon the language of the Circuit Court's Order, MarkWest may be required to 

choose between compliance with the injunction and compliance with legal obligations imposed by 

governmental regulators (i.e., the West Virginia Department of Environmental Protection and/or 

the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency). The Circuit Court's Order may require MarkWest to 

violate legal obligations imposed by a third-party governmental agency in order to comply with 

the Order. For example, certain state regulatory provisions could require specific reclanlation 

activities following a slip, but the Order requires MarkWest to "cease any activities, which will 

cause damage to or alter [the Trust's] property; including but (sic) limited to, digging, excavating, 
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paving. etc." Under the Order's express language, MarkWest would be forced to choose between 

two competing legal obligations. 

VI. CONCLUSION 

For all the foregoing reasons, Petitioner MarkWest respectfully requests that this Court 

vacate and reverse the order of the Circuit Court granting a preliminary injunction in favor of the 

Trust.