I. ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR 


Respondent James T. Nutt, Trustee of the Tobey Lynn Nutt Declaration of Trust, dated 

January 28, 2004, (hereinafter "James T. Nutt, Trustee") responds to Petitioner's Assignment of 

Errors: 

A. 	 The Circuit Court applied the proper legal standard in issuing the Preliminary 

Injunction in this unique instance. 

B. 	 The Circuit Court considered the evidence before issuing the Preliminary 

Injunction. 

C. 	 The Circuit Court's Order granting the Preliminary Injunction specifically 

provides for Petitioner's compliance "with legal obligations imposed by a third

party governmental agency." 

II. 	 STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

On or about October 28,2016, Respondent, James T. Nutt, Trustee, by counsel, filed a 

Verified Complaint and Motion for Preliminary and/or Permanent Injunction against Petitioner 

MarkWest alleging that Petitioner MarkWest breached various easement and right-of-way 

agreements by failing to properly perform specific reclamation duties on a 319.56-acre tract of 

land used for hunting and recreation purposes (the "subject property") (APP 000005). The 

Verified Complaint alleges that between 2011 and 2014, Respondent, James T. Nutt, Trustee, 

granted Petitioner MarkWest various rights-of-ways and easements upon the subject property for 

(1) multiple oil and gas pipelines, (2) an electrical line, and (3) two temporary access roads. Each 

of these Agreements included specific reclamation requirements. 

Respondent, James T. Nutt, Trustee, contends that Petitioner MarkWest failed to properly 

perform certain of these reclamation requirements after completion ofvarious construction 

activities on the subject property. Petitioner MarkWest denies Respondent, James T. Nutt, 
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Trustee's, allegations and argues that it did meet the specific reclamation requirements. 

Respondent, James T. Nutt, Trustee, seeks damages for the alleged breach of the Agreements and 

also moves for a preliminary and/or permanent injunction that would require Petitioner 

MarkWest to "cease any activities, which will cause damage to or alter [Respondent's] property; 

including by not limited to, digging, excavating, paving, etc., on [Respondent's] property." 

Respondent wishes to prelude Petitioner, MarkWest, from any further attempts to comply with 

the contractual duties. Respondent, James T. Nutt, Trustee, claims that injunctive relief is 

necessary to maintain the status quo and prevent spoliation of evidence. 

The Circuit Court held a Hearing attended by counsel for both Petitioner and Respondent, 

reviewed the Post-Hearing Brief in Opposition to Plaintiffs Motion/Proposed Finding of Facts 

and Conclusions of Law submitted by counsel for both Petitioner and Respondent, and issued an 

Order granting Respondent, James T. Nutt, Trustee's, Motion for Preliminary Injunction (APP 

000001). 

III. SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT 

In light of the specific issues presented in this unique request for injunctive relief, the 

Circuit Court applied the proper legal standard in issuing the Preliminary Injunction. After a full 

Hearing and briefing from both parties, the Circuit Court considered the evidence before issuing 

the Preliminary Injunction. The Circuit Court's Order granting the Preliminary Injunction 

specifically provides for Petitioner's compliance "with legal obligations imposed by a third-party 

governmental agency." 

IV. STATEMENT REGARDING ORAL ARGUMENT 

This case is appropriate for oral argument under Rule 19(a) because it is a case: (1) 

... involving assignments of error in the application of settled law; (2) ... claiming an 

unsustainable exercise of discretion where the law governing that discretion is settled; (3) 

... claiming insufficient evidence or a result against the weight of the evidence; (4) .. .involving a 

narrow issue of law. 
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v. ARGUMENT 


A. The Circuit Court applied the proper legal standard in issuing the 

Preliminary Injunction in this unique instance. 


The Circuit Court was well within its sound discretion, in granting the Preliminary 

Injunction due to the unique issues presented in this case. Before beginning analysis, it is 

important to understand the exact issues before the Circuit Court. The seminal issue in this 

matter is whether Petitioner properly performed all of the various contractual reclamation 

requirements. The best evidence to determine this issue is the existing conditions upon the 

subject property. The Circuit Court understood the reality of the situation and recognized the 

need to preserve the evidence in order to reach a final determination. Thus, the Circuit Court 

granted the Preliminary Injunction in order to provide for preservation of the very evidence 

necessary to decide the case. 

In support of its grant of injunctive relief, the Circuit Court's Order cites the statement of 

the West Virginia Supreme Court ofAppeals that "the function of a Preliminary Injunction, 

whether it be prohibitory or mandatory, is to preserve the status quo until, upon final hearing, the 

Court may grant full relief. "Powhatan Coal and Coke Co. v. Ritz (60 W.Va. 395, 56 SE 257, 

260 (1906)). The unique factual circumstances and legal issues present in the instant case dictate 

that the issuance of injunctive relief not only "preserves the status quo", but more importantly 

preserves the best evidence necessary to make a decision. In such instances, "[c]ourts have broad 

discretion to take measures to correct the ill effects resulting from spoliation (of evidence) ... " 

Buckeye Refirment Co., LLC v. Rack ofAmerica, NA. 239 S.W. 3rd 394, 40 1 (Tex. App. - Dallas 

2007). 

In light of the unique set of facts and issues, the Circuit Court's decision presents a matter 

of first impression in West Virginia. As such, the consideration of previous injunctive 

proceedings provide little guidance. However, the West Virginia Supreme Court of Appeals has 

previously endorsed the propriety of injunctive relief "to pressure the status quo" relating to 

waste and cutting of timber from land. Galford v. Henry 93 W.Va. 404, 116 S.E. 
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683 (1923). Here, the uniqueness of the purpose and limited nature of this particular grant of 

injunctive relief (i.e. preservation of the status quo and evidence upon the land) does not lend 

itself factually to the vast majority of decisions relating to injunctive relief. Obviously, in 

reaching its decision, the Circuit Court felt the preservation of the evidence in this instance was 

of extreme importance; such a determination can neither be described as an abuse of its 

discretion, nor clearly erroneous; which are the two standards previously required by this Court. 

See SyI. Pt. 1, State By and Through McGraw v. Imperial Marketing, 196 W. Va. 346,472 S.E. 

2nd 792 (1996). 

B. The Circuit Court considered the evidence before issuing the Preliminary 

Injunction. 

The Petitioner's assertion that "[t]he Circuit Court erred in issuing a Preliminary 

Injunction without considering any evidence" is clearly erroneous (Brief of Petitioner's, page 1). 

It is incontrovertible that the Circuit Court reviewed the "Verified Complaint and Motion for 

Preliminary and/or Permanent Injunction" before issuing a "Rule to Show Cause" (APP 000025). 

On December 13,2016, the Court held a Hearing in which counsel for Petitioner and Respondent 

proffered evidence, (APP 00089-123). Subsequently, the Circuit Court allowed for the 

submission of and considered "Post Hearing Brief in Opposition to Motion/Proposed Finding of 

Fact and Conclusions ofLaw" from counsel for Petitioner and Respondent (APP 000054 and 

000073). Thus, it is disingenuous for Petitioner to argue that" ... the Trust presented no testimony 

or other evidence ... " (Brief of Petitioner, page 1 0). 

In reality, Petitioner is arguing that the evidence considered by the Circuit Court was 

inappropriate, insufficient, substandard, etc. Respondent disputes such assertions, It is widely 

accepted that evidentiary standards in injunctive proceedings are less stringent. The United 

States Supreme Court has held that "a Preliminary Injunction is customarily granted on the basis 

of procedures that are less formal and evidence that is less complete than in a trial on the merits." 

Univ. ofTexas v. Camenisch, 451 U.S. 390,392,393 (1981). In the instant case, there exists 

sufficient evidence to justify the Circuit Court's determination. The unique factual scenario and 
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the limited nature of the injunctive relief requested must be focused upon and considered. The 

Circuit Court's narrowly crafted Order merely insured the preservation of the evidence (i.e. the 

conditions upon the Subject Property) at no conceivable harm to the Petitioner. 

C. The Circuit Court's Order granting the Preliminary Injunction specifically 

provides for Petitioner's compliance "with legal obligations imposed by a third-party 

governmental agency." 

A review of the Circuit Court's Order, page 4, paragraph 2, reveals that the Court 

specifically provided for Petitioner's compliance "with legal obligations imposed by a third-party 

governmental agency." The Order itself states in pertinent part: 

"Provided, the Defendant may lawfully exercise any rights granted 
and fulfill any legal obligations imposed by Plaintiff or any third 
party agency within its legitimate exercise of power so long as the 
same is not contrary to the injunction granted hereby." 

The Circuit Court goes further to provide a very reasonable mechanism/procedure for any 

possible problems which might arise. 

"In the event the parties cannot agree as to the Defendant's activities 
in this regard, the Court shall make such determination upon proper 
scheduling and notice." 

The language of the Order speaks for itself and it is incomprehensible that before the West 

Virginia Supreme Court of Appeals, Petitioner is making such a spurious argument otherwise. 

VI. CONCLUSION 

In light of the foregoing, Respondent James T. Nutt, Trustee respectfully requests that 

this Court uphold the Order of the Circuit Court granting a Preliminary Injunction in favor of the 

Trust.